
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Boyd

AGENDA April 06, 2016

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Boyd

Presentation Commissioner Sabrena Smedley will honor Kirsten Legac for being selected as the Southeast
Regional Teacher of the Year for the high school division.

Presentation Commissioner Sabrena Smedley will honor Cole Henry for winning 1st place in the 2016 "What
My Mother Means to Me" National Fifth Grade Essay Contest.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - March 9, 2016

Minutes Agenda Session - March 9, 2016

Minutes Regular Meeting - March 16, 2016

Report Trustee Monthly Report - February 2016

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - February 2016

Report Trustee Monthly Report - January 2016

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report - January 2016

Report Appointment of Hugh Coulter to North West Utility District Board of Commissioners.

Res. No. 416-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, and oath of Deputy Sheriff.

Res. No. 416-2 A Resolution to appoint one (1) member to the Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board to fill
an unexpired term ending August 5, 2017.

Res. No. 416-3 A Resolution confirming the appointment by the County Mayor of one member to the
Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees for a term ending November
1, 2019.

Res. No. 416-4 A Resolution making an appropriation to Chattanooga’s Kids on the Block, Inc., in the amount of
one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Nine.

Res. No. 416-5 A Resolution making an appropriation to A Night to Remember, Inc., in the amount of three
thousand dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Five.

Res. No. 416-6 A Resolution approving the expenditure of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund
discretionary monies (as allotted to District Two) to assist the Town of Red Bank with their Dixie
Youth Program.

Res. No. 416-7 A Resolution making an appropriation to Kappa Foundation of Chattanooga in the amount of two
thousand dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District
Four.

Res. No. 416-8 A Resolution to approve an Interlocal Agreement between the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton
County for modifications and improvements to the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Firing Range in
an amount not to exceed one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000.00) and to provide for
equal sharing of ongoing operational costs of same.

Res. No. 416-9 A Resolution to approve the issuance of bonds for the benefit of WCO AL DP, LLC.

Res. No. 416-10 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to sign a contract amendment between the State of
Tennessee Department of Human Services and the Hamilton County Juvenile Court Title IV-D
Child Support Division.



Res. No. 416-11 A Resolution accepting the bid of Saitech, Inc. for one (1) year contract unit pricing, with the
option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, beginning April 6, 2016 through April 5,
2017, for laptop computers with docking stations amounting to $999.58 each for the Sheriff’s
Department and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this
Resolution.

Res. No. 416-12 A Resolution accepting the bid of On Duty Depot for one (1) year contract unit pricing, beginning
April 6, 2016 through April 5, 2017, for vehicle upfitting equipment for the Sheriff’s vehicles and
to authorize the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 416-13 A Resolution authorizing the County Mayor to submit a grant application to develop a conceptual
Master Plan for Chester Frost Park to the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community
Development in an amount not to exceed $40,000 which includes a $20,000 County match.

Res. No. 416-14 A Resolution accepting the bid of JDH Company, Inc. for re-roofing the Chattanooga/Hamilton
County Health Department amounting to $191,625.00 and authorizing the County Mayor to sign
any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 416-15 A Resolution accepting the bid of Graybar Electric Company, Inc. for one (1) copper/fiber cable
tester amounting to $22,508.95 for the Telecommunications Department and to authorize the
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 416-16 A Resolution accepting the proposal of EPB Fiber Optics for local telephone service to Hamilton
County Government offices and schools for a period of three years with the option to renew for
two (2) additional one (1) year terms and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts
necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 416-17 A Resolution authorizing the slope stabilization repairs of Hotwater Road by Geostabilization
International on the state contract for soil nailing for various counties and authorizing the County
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 416-18 A Resolution accepting the bids of Davies Imperial Coatings, Inc., Ozark Materials, LLC and
Sherwin Williams Company for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning May 1, 2016, through
April 30, 2017, for waterborne highway traffic paint and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 9, 2016 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 9th day of March, 2016, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9.  Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Bankston introduced Pastor Dr. Pedro Basden, Warren Chapel 

African Methodist Episcopal Church, who gave the invocation.  Commissioner Bankston 

led in the pledge to the flag. 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 

2 
 

Chairman Bankston announced that there was not any scheduled business for 

the Recessed Meeting and asked if anyone had any announcements. 

 

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

      

     Respectfully submitted: 

 

 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 

 

 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 9, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 9th day of March, 2016, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• Resolution No. 316-17 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolution No. 316-24 through 316-27 were assigned to the Zoning Committee, 
chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

• Resolution Nos. 316-28 through 316-38 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

• Resolution Nos. 316-18 through 316-23 were heard by a Committee of the 
Whole. 

 
 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 316-18 through 316-23 would 

now be heard by the Committee of the Whole. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 316-18 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which reappoints County 

Engineer Todd Leamon, to the Phase II Storm Water Management Committee for a 

term ending April 1, 2020. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 3 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 316-19 
 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $1,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district four, to Chattanooga 

Room in the Inn, Inc. It was noted the funds will assist with their Children’s Enrichment 

Program. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 316-20 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $5,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to district four, to Churchville 

Neighborhood Association, Inc. It was noted the funds will assist with youth 

development. 

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 4 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 316-21 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which adds elevator consulting 

services and technology consulting services to the list of professional, technical, and 

consultant services that may be obtained subject to section 4.2.4.K of the purchasing 

rules for Hamilton County. 

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 316-22 

 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which adopts a funding policy for 

the Hamilton County employee’s pension plan, the Hamilton County Commissioner’s 

pension plan, and the Hamilton County teacher’s pension plan.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 316-23 

 

Albert Kiser, Administrator of Finance spoke regarding this item, which 

authorizes Hamilton County to make an intergovernmental transfer to the state of 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 5 

Tennessee’s TennCare program in order to secure additional funding from the state of 

Tennessee’s Public Hospital Supplemental Payment Pool (PHSPP) for the 

Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority (Erlanger).  

 

In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, he clarified that this resolution 

simply authorizes Hamilton County to accept public Erlanger funds in the amount of 

$9,782,265 and transmit those funds to the state of Tennessee’s Bureau of TennCare. 

Mr.Kiser noted this is the same procedure that was done the past two years (Resolution 

No. 315-33 and 414-31). 

 

It was explained that the TennCare Program has a financial pool of one million 

dollars known as the PHSPP, which provides health services to TennCare enrollees 

and uninsured patients serviced by Metro Nashville General Hospital, Regional One 

Health at Memphis and Erlanger. Erlanger’s participation in said pool requires the 

intergovernmental transfer in order to secure $27,989,312 for Erlanger from the 

TennCare program. It was noted that this transfer is no cost to Hamilton County.  

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would be meeting in the Conference Room immediately following the 

Agenda Session.   



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 6 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately following 

the Agenda Session.   

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Haynes thanked Dr. Greg Martin, School Board District 3 

member, for attending today’s meeting. He echoed Mr. Martin’s comments from last 

night’s school board meeting, “What’s next?” 

 

Commissioner Mackey encouraged everyone to attend a community educational 

forum at Orchard Knob Baptist Church; Thursday March 10th at 6:00 pm. Topic of the 

meeting will be the readiness of children coming into the school system.  

 

Commissioner Graham also thanked Dr. Greg Martin, School Board District 3 

member, for attending today’s meeting. He also echoed Mr. Martin’s comments from 

last night’s school board meeting, “What’s next?” He encouraged everyone to get 

involved and volunteer with their local recreation center. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 7 

 

Commissioner Boyd reported that he attended last night’s ceremony honoring 

Mr. Fletcher Bright, recipient of the 2016 Ruth Holmberg Arts Leadership Award at 

Hunter Museum.  He spoke highly of Mr. Bright and the reception. He invited everyone 

to attend tomorrow night’s community meeting regarding the Hamilton County Water 

and Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA). The meeting will be co-hosted by 

Commissioner Fairbanks at Soddy Daisy City Hall, Thursday, March 10th at 6:30 pm. 

 

Commissioner Fields also thanked Dr. Greg Martin, School Board District 3 

member, for attending today’s meeting. 

 

Commissioner Smedley congratulated Kristen Legac, teacher at East Hamilton 

School who was selected as the Southeast Regional Teacher of the Year for high 

school, grades 9-12 division. She invited everyone to attend tomorrow’s groundbreaking 

for the Collegedale Commons development at the Commons property site next to City 

Hall in Collegedale from 3:00 pm – 4:00 pm.  

 

Commissioner Beck thanked Dr. Greg Martin, School Board District 3 member, 

for his comments and steadfastness at last night’s school board meeting. He also 

thanked the school board for their vote that was rendered last night regarding 

Superintendent Rick Smith’s buyout offer.  He thanked Mr. Martin and Ms. Karitsa 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 8 

Mosley, District 5 School Board member for voting against the buyout and for making 

sensible comments regarding the matter. 

 

Commissioner Smedley, Chairman of the Education Committee announced that 

the education committee scheduled for today has been rescheduled to next 

Wednesday, March 16th immediately following the Regular meeting. 

 

Attorney Taylor requested that Commissioners and the Mayor meet with him in 

the adjacent conference room following today’s Agenda Session for a brief legal 

meeting on pending litigation.  

 

Mayor Coppinger also thanked Dr. Greg Martin, School Board District 3 member, 

for attending today’s meeting. He reported that over 800 people attended last week’s 

open house at the Edney Innovation Center. He reported that he will be giving a speech 

next Tuesday morning during the Kiwanis meeting taking place at Creeks Bend Golf 

and Country Club, he encouraged everyone to attend. He also reported that budget 

workshop dates will be announced soon. The budget will be broken down into three 

segments and a workshop will be held for each.  

 

Chairman Bankston welcomed Dr. Martin and thanked him for attending today’s 

meeting. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MARCH 9, 2016 
 
 

 9 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, March 16th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  March 16, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 16th day of March, 2016, a Regular Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Boyd, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Haynes, 

Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. 

Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. 

 

Chairman Bankston reported that Commissioner Beck would be absent for 

today’s meeting.  

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

2 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 

Chairman Bankston introduced Reverend Andy Cornett, Signal Mountain 

Presbyterian Church, who gave the invocation. Commissioner Bankston led in the 

pledge to the flag.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of February 24, 2016, the Agenda 

Preparation Session of February 24, 2016, and the Regular Meeting of March 2, 2016, 

be approved, treat same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing 

Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total 

present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

3 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting March 14, 

2016. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-17 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, THE OATH OF DEPUTY COUNTY CLERK, 

AND THE OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 316-17. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution Nos. 316-18 through 316-23 were 

heard by a Committee of the Whole.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

4 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 316-19 and 316-20 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-19 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

CHATTANOOGA ROOM IN THE INN, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND 

DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS 

ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-20 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

CHURCHVILLE NEIGHBORHOOD ASSOCIATION, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF FIVE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($5,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 316-19 and 316-20. The foregoing Resolutions were adopted on 

a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present 

and voting as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner 

Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 7. Total “Nay” 

votes – 0. Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

5 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-18 A RESOLUTION TO REAPPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO 

THE PHASE II STORM WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE FOR A FOUR (4) 

YEAR TERM BEGINNING APRIL 1, 2016 AND ENDING APRIL 1, 2020. 

 

 This Resolution reappoints County Engineer Todd Leamon for a four year term 

beginning April 1, 2016 and ending April 1, 2020.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Graham, 

to adopt Resolution No. 316-18. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-21 A RESOLUTION ADDING ELEVATOR CONSULTING 

SERVICES AND TECHNOLOGY CONSULTING SERVICES TO THE LIST OF 

PROFESSIONAL, TECHNICAL, AND CONSULTANT SERVICES THAT MAY BE 

OBTAINED SUBJECT TO SECTION 4.2.4.K OF THE PURCHASING RULES FOR 

HAMILTON COUNTY. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

6 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Haynes, to 

adopt Resolution No. 316-21. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-22 A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT A FUNDING POLICY FOR 

THE HAMILTON COUNTY EMPLOYEES' PENSION PLAN, THE HAMILTON 

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' PENSION PLAN, AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

TEACHERS' PENSION PLAN. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 316-22. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

7 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-23 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING HAMILTON COUNTY TO 

MAKE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSFER TO THE STATE OF TENNESSEE'S 

TENNCARE PROGRAM IN ORDER TO SECURE ADDITIONAL FUNDING FROM 

THE STATE OF TENNESSEE'S PUBLIC HOSPITAL SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENT 

POOL ("PHSPP") FOR THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL 

AUTHORITY ("ERLANGER"). 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Mackey, to 

adopt Resolution No. 316-23. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 316-24 through 316-27 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-24 A RESOLUTION GRANTING APPROVAL OF A SPECIAL 

PERMIT FOR A CELL TOWER ON A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED AT 3375 CAMP 

ROAD. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

8 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-25 A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL PERMIT FOR A 

SHORT TERM VACATION RENTAL ON PROPERTY AT 719 SOUTH SCENIC 

HIGHWAY. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-26 A RESOLUTION TO REZONE FROM A-1 

AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT AND R-2 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE 

FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT, PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3015 OOLTEWAH-

RINGGOLD ROAD. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-27 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE HAMILTON COUNTY 

ZONING REGULATIONS, ARTICLE VI, EXCEPTIONS, SECTION 400 SPECIAL 

PERMITS BY HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION, SUBSECTION 401.7, 

APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT BY DELETING 

ITEM "F(1 )" THAT REFERENCES A SIXTY (60) MONTH EXPIRATION PERIOD AND 

CORRECT MINOR WORDING WITHIN REMAINING ITEMS B(2), E(1) AND F(3). 

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 316-24 through 316-27 and stated that the Zoning 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval. It was noted that no opposition was 

present at today’s meeting.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

9 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 316-24 through 316-27.  The foregoing Resolutions were 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, 

“Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 

8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 316-28 through 316-38 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-28 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PRATER 

FORD, INC. FOR ONE (1) CARGO VAN AMOUNTING TO $29,826.00 FOR THE 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-29 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF KIESLER 

POLICE SUPPLY, INC. FOR TWENTY-THREE (23) BALLISTIC HELMETS 

AMOUNTING TO $20,244.14 FOR SHERIFF'S OFFICE AND AUTHORIZING THE 

COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 

RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-30 A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF FEBRUARY 1, 2016, 

THROUGH FEBRUARY 29, 2016, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-31 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF MILITARY 

AND THE TENNESSEE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY FOR A 2015 

HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT WITH A PERIOD OF 09/01/2015 THROUGH 

04/30/2018 AND AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE EMERGENCY SERVICES 

DEPARTMENT BY ADDING $170,836.20 TO REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-32 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING HAMILTON COUNTY 

MAYOR JIM M. COPPINGER TO APPLY TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AND ACCEPT A LITTER PREVENTION AND TRASH 

COLLECTION GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $108,900 WITH A CONTRACT PERIOD 

BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-33 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION AS THE CHATTANOOGA HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

11 

 

OF HEALTH FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017 IN 

THE AMOUNT OF $230,000.00 TO PROVIDE FOR THE COORDINATION OF FETAL 

INFANT MORTALITY REVIEW AND COMMUNITY INFANT MORTALITY 

REDUCTION SERVICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH'S GUIDELINES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-34 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTRACT AMENDMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$23,490.00 WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH TO PROVIDE 

EMERGENCY DENTAL CARE FOR UNINSURED ADULTS AGES 19 - 64 YEARS 

FOR THE TIME PERIOD JULY 1, 2015 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2016 AND TO 

INCREASE THE REVENUE AND EXPENSE BUDGETS BY $23,490.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-35 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH BLUECROSS 

BLUESHIELD OF TENNESSEE FOR THE PROVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH 

SERVICES AT OUR HOMELESS HEALTH CARE CENTER TO PRODUCT 

MEMBERS EFFECTIVE 3/16/2016. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

12 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-36 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SWARCO 

INDUSTRIES, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 

16, 2016, THROUGH MARCH 15, 2017, FOR GLASS SPHERE REFLECTIVE BEADS 

FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-37 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF 84 LUMBER 

COMPANY FOR SIX (6) MONTHS CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING MARCH 16, 

2016, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 15, 2016, FOR BAGGED PORTLAND CEMENT FOR 

THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-38 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF YSI 

INCORPORATED FOR TWO (2) WATER QUALITY SONDES AMOUNTING TO 

$26,107.25 FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY WATER QUALITY PROGRAM AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, provided details 

regarding Resolution Nos. 316-28 through 316-38, and stated that the Finance 

Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

13 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 316-28 through 316-38.   

 

Commissioner Haynes noted that due to a conflict of interest he wished to 

abstain from voting on Resolution No. 316-36.  

 

Commissioner Boyd and Commissioner Mackey complimented Purchasing 

Director Gail Roppo and the staff in the Finance Department on their work in sending 

out notices and obtaining competitive bids.  

 

The foregoing Resolutions were adopted on a Roll Call vote. Members of the 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye” Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman 

Bankston, “Aye”, Commissioner Beck was absent. Total “Aye” votes – 8 recorded on 

each Resolution; with the exception of an abstention by Commissioner Haynes relating 

to Resolution 316-36.  Total “Nay” votes – 0.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

14 

 

LATE ITEM  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 316-39  A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PAYMENT OF 

SEVENTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($70,000.00) IN SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 

AGAINST HAMILTON COUNTY AS BROUGHT BY LINDA K. PORTER FOR 

PHYSICAL INJURIES RECEIVED AS A RESULT OF A MOTOR VEHICLE 

ACCIDENT WITH A HAMILTON COUNTY VEHICLE.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 316-39. The foregoing Motion was adopted on a Roll Call vote, 

with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting as 

follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Commissioner Beck was absent. Total present – 8. Total absent – 1. Total “Aye” 

votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

15 

 

Commissioner Haynes invited everyone to attend a District 3 community meeting 

that will take place on March 22nd at 6:00 pm at Hixson High School regarding the future 

of education in Hamilton County. The meeting will be hosted by District 3 School Board 

Member Dr. Greg Martin and the 8 PTA presidents from the schools in District 3. 

Commissioner Haynes congratulated Bob McKamey, Owner and President of Capital 

Toyota, on his 50th anniversary as a Toyota dealer.  

 

Commissioner Graham encouraged everyone to participate and volunteer at 

local ball fields in consideration of the approaching baseball season.  

 

Commissioner Boyd invited everyone to attend a community meeting on March 

31st at 6:30 pm at the Red Bank Community Center regarding the Hamilton County 

Waste and Wastewater Treatment Authority (WWTA). He noted that the previous two 

meetings were well attended. 

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about a letter he received on March 16, 2016 from 

Attorney Taylor. The letter is in response to Commissioner Boyd’s request for an 

explanation of the Hamilton County’s Read 20 Program, and County general funds 

being appropriated to said program. Attached to the letter is the Attorney General for the 

State of Tennessee’s Opinion No. 92-03 accompanied by the Comptroller’s Findings. 

He noted that the letter explains why Read 20 does not conflict with the attorney 

general’s opinion. He asked the Commission to review the letter and follow up with any 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

16 

 

questions they may have. At the request of Clerk Knowles a copy of the handout was 

provided to the Clerk’s office.  

 

Commissioner Fairbanks congratulated the Soddy Daisy High School 

cheerleaders for winning the National Championship in Texas for the second year in a 

row. He also recognized his youngest daughter, Lauren, in the audience who was 

visiting from St. Louis. He thanked his daughter and his wife for being at today’s 

meeting.  

 

Mayor Coppinger announced that on March 30th from 4-6 pm, the Hamilton 

County gym facility, the Well, will be hosting an open house to celebrate their 5th 

anniversary. He encouraged everyone to attend and participate in the classes that will 

be taking place. It was noted that the Well is open 24 hours a day for County employees 

and their families.  

 

Commissioner Boyd noted that there has been a large return on investments 

made to promote wellness within Hamilton County. He added that last year’s budget 

had over $1 million in health insurance savings.  

 

Chairman Bankston noted that in light of his recent health issues and at the 

urging of family members, he will be attending the open house at the Well.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 16, 2016 
 

17 

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning.  

 

Monty Bell, a homeless resident of Hamilton County for 17 years, addressed the 

Commission regarding the lack of educational opportunities and the criminal justice 

system. Chairman Bankston reminded Mr. Bell that per Resolution No. 315-13, he has 

three minutes to make his presentation, and that he is not to publicly call out the name 

of any Commissioner. Mr. Bell spoke for the allotted time, after which he was informed 

by Chairman Bankston that concerns pertaining to the educational system should be 

addressed at a Board of Education meeting. 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, March 30, 2016 at 9:30 AM. 

       
 
       
 
      Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials     



WILLIAM F. (BILL) KNOWLES 
County Clerk 

MEMO 

HAMIL TON COUNTY 

Of FicE OF TltE CouNTY CLERI< 
ROOM 201, COURTHOUSE, CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE 37402 

TO: Members, Hamilton County Commission 

FROM: Bill Knowles 

DATE: March 10, 2016 

In accordance with TCA §67-5-1902, I am attaching a copy of the monthly 
Trustee report for the month of February 2016. 

WFK/dkr 

Cc: County Mayor Jim Coppinger 
County Auditor Bill McGriff 
Finance Administrator Albert Kiser 
Patricia Moore, Legislative Administrator 



Object 

Cash in Bank 

11001 

11010 

11020 

11030 

Description 

PETTY CASH 

TRUSTEE CONCENTRATION 

CHILDCARE 

FOOD SERVICE DEPOSITORY 

Total Cash in Bank 

Bank Deposits in Transit 

11015 

11050 

CASH RECEIPTS SWEEP 

BOE CASH RECEPT SWEEP 

Total Bank Deposits in Transit 

Bank Outstanding Checks 

22201 

22202 

22206 

22280 

22281 

22285 

22286 

Other Assets 

11402 

Other Assets 

11505 

AIP CHECK PAY ABLE 

FOOD SERVICE CHECK PAY ABLE 

DOE AIP CHECK PAY ABLE 

COUNTY PAYROLL CHECKS PAYABLE 

DOE PAYROLL CHECK PAYABLE 

DOE PAYROLL TAX PAYABLE 

DOE RETIREMENT PLANS 

Total Bank Outstanding Checks 

TOTAL CASH 

DUE FROM BAD CHECKS 

Total Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

UNBILLED RECEIV ALBES 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee _Report_2008_04_18 

User: Jackie Ware 

Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/01/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Beginning 
Balance 

2,451.98 

23,944,064.59 

222,702.02 

7,127,356.86 

31,296,575.45 

11,177.30 

(54,012.31) 

(42.835.01) 

(1,711,253.95) 

(335,486.53) 

(3,712,228.08) 

(14,822.17) 

(6,061.35) 

(16,729.87) 

(0.00) 

( 5, 796,581.95) 

25,457,158.49 

885.07 

885.07 

25,458,043.56 

0.00 

Page: 

Debit 
Amount 

0.00 

180,230,903.06 

269,219.31 

1,894,694.77 

182,394,817.14 

43,378,559 .56 

143, 108,324.84 

186,486,884.40 

9,176,377.74 

3,576,622.65 

10,811,970.78 

4,288, 729 .62 

11,479,137.95 

4,221,337. 70 

2,272,439.21 

45,826,615 .65 

414,708,317.19 

370.00 

370.00 

414,708,687.19 

0.00 

RECEIVED 
Date 3- I 0-1.b 
By~G(s, go,. r5> 

W.F. (Bill) Knowles 
County Clerk 

Credit 
Amount 

0.00 

157, 107,356.03 

234,915.52 

4,275,019.08 

161,617,290.63 

43,379,588. 10 

143,071,496.3 7 

186,451,084.47 

9,488,696.14 

3,410,206.84 

9,548,328.54 

4,288, 192.33 

11,478, 192.38 

4,223,422. 75 

2,326, 128.65 

44, 763, 167 .63 

392,831,542. 73 

270.00 

270.00 

392,831,812.73 

0.00 

Date: 03/10/2016 
Time: 15:54:07 

Ending 
Balance 

2,451.98 

47,067,611.62 

257,005.81 

4,747,032.55 

52,074, 101.96 

10,148.76 

(17,183.84) 

(7.035.08) 

{2,023,572.35) 

(169,070.72) 

(2,448,585.84) 

(14,284.88) 

(5,115.78) 

( 18,814.92) 

(53,689.44) 

(4,733,133.93) 

47,333,932.95 

985.07 

985.07 

47,334,918.02 

0.00 



;!
" -

_::
'. 

:.!_
 .... 

:-.
·· 

. ~
 

'~
 

i 

• 
~ 

• 
l 

"· 

.. 
-· · .. 

! :
::

 

• 
! 

i·
 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/0 I /20 16 to 02/29/20 16 

Beginning Debit Credit Ending 
Object Description Balance Amount Amount Balance 

Total Other Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOT AL ASSETS 25,458,043.56 414, 708,687.19 392,831,812.73 47,334,918.02 

Cash Held for Hamilton County Funds 

22250 BOARD OF EDUCATION (13,829,611.80) 81,373,820.18 81,671,099.40 ( 14, 126,891.02) 

22251 FOOD SERVICE (6,791,812.68) 4, 112,901.75 1,898, 996.12 (4,577,907.05) 

22255 BOE PAYROLL (230, 121.10) 18,979,689.83 18,856,658.17 (107,089.44) 

22256 BOE SELF INSURANCE 1,292, 759.67 4,681,446.00 6,693,300.36 (719,094.69) 

22257 CAP IT AL MAINTENANCE 171,258.52 173,569.52 700,052.98 (355,224.94) 

22401 EXCESS FEES (607,573.72) 671,042.95 2,313,616.85 (2,250,147.62) 

22407 PAYROLL COUNTY (820, 134.79) 7,334,775.57 7 ,268,305 .13 (753,664.35) 

22408 STORMWATER (1,081,055.79) 43,714.95 182,991.01 ( 1,220,331.85) 

22409 DRUG COURT (53,565.46) 23,082.81 2,525.16 (33,007.81) 

22410 COUNTY GENERAL ( 1,627 ,834.88) 75,734,349.42 74,559,572.24 (453,057.70) 

22412 GENERAL DEBT SERVICE (519.35) 61,705.68 61,726.43 (540.10) 

22413 OPEBTRUST (2,488.86) 0.00 0.41 (2,489.27) 

22414 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT (111,311.10) 18,890.38 10,000.00 ( 102,420. 72) 

22415 TEACHERS RETIREMENT (1,702.55) 600.00 299.00 (1,401.55) 

22416 LAW LIBRARY (490.19) 2,722.57 2,721.37 (488.99) 

22418 ECONOMIC CRIMES (500.08) 2,917.08 2,917.14 (500.14) 

22419 GEN GOV'T BOND PROJECTS 2,813,648.28 726,751.46 3,399,504.45 140,895.29 

22420 CAPITAL PROJECTS (9,844.36) 318,435.97 318,414.46 (9,822.85) 

22421 INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT (2,500.42) 37,759.59 37,759.59 (2,500.42) 

22422 RIVERW ALK/FISHING PIER 955,681.95 749,574.80 0.00 1,705,256.75 

22423 RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECTS (45.16) 44,695.49 4,675.20 39,975.13 

22426 SELF INSURANCE (7,226.55) 4,470,810.88 4,466,092.35 (2,508.02) 

22428 LIABILITY INSURANCE (2,500.56) 183,571.10 183,571.17 (2,500.63) 

22430 HOTEL/MOTEL ( 413,822.30) 413,822.30 456,160.79 ( 456, 160. 79) 

22434 JUVENILE COURT CLERK AGENCY (3,352.76) 374,833.36 372,133.86 (653.26) 

22435 FACILITY BONDS-SERIES 201 OA (2,816.51) 0.00 0.47 (2,816.98) 

22436 BOND FUND-SERIES 201 OB (875,298.87) 0.00 145.88 (875,444. 75) 

22437 ECONOMIC BONDS-SERIES 201 OC (0.01) 0.00 329.04 (329.05) 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _ l 8 Page: 2 Date: 03/10/2016 
User: Jackie Ware Time: 15:54:07 



Object Description 

22449 SCHOOL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

22461 CRIMINAL COURT 

22462 CRIMINAL COURT SESSIONS 

22463 DELINQUENT COLLECTIONS 

22472 LINE OF CREDIT 

22473 2015A BOND 

22483 SHERIFF 

22484 DRUG ENFORCEMENT-SHERIFF 

22485 TN ST ATE SEX OFFENDER 

22489 SHERIFF'S SPECIAL PROJECTS 

22498 SYMPRO INVESTMENT POOL 

Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/0I/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Beginning 
Balance 

2,433,000.74 

(412,087.94) 

501,692.63 

(446, 170.93) 
(584,577.86) 

(230,205.32) 
(74,556.53) 

(478.29) 
(73,268.25) 

(13,092.33) 

(3,624,910.52) 

Total Cash Held for Hamilton County Funds (23, 767,436.03) 

Cash Held for Others 

22801 OVER/SHORT 

23301 PROPERTY TAX SALE 
23302 PARTIAL TAXES-PENDING PAYMENT 

Total Cash Held for Others 

Clearing Account Activity 

11016 PROPERTY TAX SWEEP 

22800 INTEREST PAYMENT FUTURE 

Total Clearing Account Activity 

Liabilities not Applicable 

22200 VENDOR-SYSTEM 

22400 TEMPORARY CASH TRANSFER 

22500 CRIMINAL CT CK PENAL FARM FINE 

Total Liabilities not Applicable 

Clearing Account Activity - Counfy Funds 

Key: 0001130 COUNTY OCCUPANCY TAX 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report _2008 _ 04 _ l 8 

User: Jackie Ware 

(109.24) 

0.00 
(5, 166.01) 

(5,275.25) 

1,433.91 

0.00 

1,433.91 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

Page: 3 

Debit 
Amount 

2,071,668.67 

162,050.02 

344,459.84 

48,243.88 
2,000,000.00 

5,583,802.58 

4,812,960.39 

20,151.38 
1,512.00 

13.72 
97,385,808.28 

312,966, 154.40 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

107,080,296. 71 

4,398.71 

107,084,695.42 

559,070.28 

52,000,000.00 

0.00 

5225592070.28 

Credit 
Amount 

4, 184,489.29 

224,950.22 

420,500.87 

63,524.42 

2,000,085.94 

5,500,000.00 

4, 742,970.96 

20,031.83 
1,212.07 

1,374.24 

108, 155,475.71 

328, 778, 184.58 

178.63 

36,066.19 

4,675.98 

40,920.80 

107,078,284.86 

4,398.71 

107,082,683.57 

866,144.82 

52,000,000.00 

0.00 

5228662144.82 

Date: 03/10/2016 
Time: 15 :54:07 

Ending 
Balance 

320,180.12 

(474,988.14) 

425,651.60 

(461,451.47) 
(584,663.80) 

(146,402.74) 

(4,567.10) 

(358.74) 

(72,968.32) 
(] 4,452.85) 

( 14,394,577 .95) 

(39 ,579 ,466.21) 

(287.87) 

(36,066.19) 
(9,841.99) 

( 46, 196.05) 

3,445.76 

0.00 

3,445.76 

(307,074.54) 

0.00 

0.00 

(3072074.54) 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/01/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Object Description 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total for Org Key: 0001130 COUNTY OCCUPANCY TAX 

Key: 0001150 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAP TAX 
22703 IN LIEU OF TAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22709 IN LIEU OF - TV A 
22711 PROPERTY TAX l&P 

22712 OSAP TAX I&P 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX l&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 
22722 OSAP TAX REFUND 

22724 PERSONALTY TAX REFUND 

22731 PROPERTY TAX I&P REUND 
22734 PERSONALTY TAX l&P REFUND 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001150 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Total Clearing Account Activity - County Funds 

Cash Held for Municipalities 

Key: 0001010 CITY OF EAST RIDGE 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAP TAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OFT AX-EPB 

Report: TR2031 _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _ l 8 

User: Jackie Ware 

Beginning 
Balance 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(380,372.57) 

(12,851.66) 

(17 ,202.81) 

0.00 

Page: 4 

Debit Credit Ending 
Amount Amount Balance 

466,716.08 466,716.08 0.00 

9,308.23 9,308.23 0.00 

476,024.31 476,024.31 0.00 

37,996,947.82 37,996,947.82 0.00 

3,645,858.01 3,645,858.0 I 0.00 
3,762,740.79 3,762,740.79 0.00 
5,277,545.45 5,277 ,545 .45 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
97,682.84 97,682.84 0.00 

127,103.54 127,103.54 0.00 
515.19 515.19 0.00 

1,264.74 1,264.74 0.00 
42,889.39 42,889.39 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
16,601.41 16,601.41 0.00 
1,112.90 1,112.90 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
1,016,981.09 1,016,981.09 0.00 

51 29872243.17 51 29872243.17 0.00 

51,987,243.17 51,987,243.17 0.00 

5224632267 .48 5224632267.48 0.00 

380,372.57 1,635,930.30 ( 1,635,930.30) 

12,851.66 122,688.00 (122,688.00) 
17,202.81 106,838.51 ( 106,838.51) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

Date: 03/10/2016 
Time: 15:54:07 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/01/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Beginning Debit Credit Ending 
Object Description Balance Amount Amount Balance 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P (1,453.09) 1,453.09 8,010.97 (8,010.97) 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX I&P (1.76) 1.76 79.07 (79.07) 

22721 PROPER TY TAX REFUNDS 910.59 1,150.26 910.59 1,150.26 

22724 PERSONALTY TAX REFUND 1.07 1,818.32 1.07 1,818.32 

22731 PROPERTY TAX I&P REUND 0.00 49.96 0.00 49.96 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX (27,723.46) 27,723.46 20,554.84 (20,554.84) 

22755 SANITATION (127,566.99) 127,566.99 386,921.95 (386,921.95) 

22756 SANITATION I & P (575.96) 575.96 2,950.52 (2,950.52) 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 8,496.62 37,626.83 8,507.34 37,616.11 

Total Cash Held for Municipalities (5582340.02) 6082393.67 222932393.16 (222432339.51) 

Total for Org Key: 0001010 CITY OF EAST RIDGE (558,340.02) 608,393.67 2,293,393.16 (2,243,339.51) 

Key: 0001020 RED BANK MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX ( 183,973.63) 183,990.63 789,411.44 (789,394.44) 

22702 OSAPTAX (9,353.14) 9,353.14 86,121.15 (86,121.15) 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX (3,808.41) 3,808.41 20,645.88 (20,645.88) 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

22711 PROPERTY TAX l&P (892.44) 899.40 2,347.54 (2,340.58) 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX I&P (6.50) 6.50 12.54 (12.54) 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

22724 PERSONAL TY TAX REFUND 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

22731 PROPERTY TAX I&P REUND 53.42 o~oo 53.42 0.00 

22741 STORMW ATER FEES (24,696.00) 24,696.00 85,895.99 (85,895.99) 

22742 STORMW ATER FEES I&P (77.22) 77.22 144.38 (144.38) 

22755 SANITATION (64,599.20) 64,599.20 258,198.11 (258,198.11) 

22756 SANITATION I & P (598.30) 598.30 871.19 (871.19) 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 4,207.34 18,831.17 4,207.82 18,830.69 

Total (2832744.08) 3062859.97 122472909.46 (1 22242793.57) 

Total for Org Key: 0001020 RED BANK MUNICIPAL (283, 744.08) 306,859.97 1,247,909.46 ( 1,224, 793.57) 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _ l 8 Page: 5 Date: 03/10/2016 
User: Jackie Ware Time: 15:54:07 



Object Description 

Key: 0001030 SODDY DAISY MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OFT AX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX l&P 

22712 OSAPTAX I&P 

22714 PERSONAL TY TAX l&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONALTY TAX REFUND 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Hamilton County 

Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/01/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Beginning 
Balance 

(231,487.50) 

(11,784.14) 

( 17 ,25 5 .31 ) 

0.00 

(618.54) 

0.00 

(32.23) 

87.23 

0.00 

5,221.81 

(2552868.68} 

Total for Org Key: 0001030 SODDY DAISY MUNICIPAL (255,868.68) 

Key: 0001040 COLLEGEDALE MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAP TAX 

22703 IN LIEU OF TAX 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OFT AX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX l&P 

22712 OSAP TAX I&P 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX l&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONAL TY TAX REFUND 

22731 PROPERTY TAX I&P REUND 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee _Report_2008 _ 04 _ l 8 

User: Jackie Ware 

(160,072.94) 

(5,337.57) 

0.00 

(2,359.56) 

0.00 

(643.31) 

0.00 

(1.76) 

4,132.14 

0.00 

0.00 

(150.73) 

3,287.17 

Page: 6 

Debit 
Amount 

231,750.06 

11,784.14 

17,255.31 

0.00 

761.24 

0.00 

32.23 

150.79 

0.00 

24,941.47 

2862675.24 

286,675.24 

160,072.94 

5,337.57 

0.00 

2,359.56 

0.00 

643.31 

0.00 

1.76 

271.37 

70.72 

0.00 

150.73 

43,182.52 

Credit 
Amount 

1,089, 155.53 

85,337.21 

68,053.53 

0.00 

4,546.29 

59.16 

72.72 

87.23 

0.00 

5,229.91 

I 22522541.58 

1,252,541.58 

1,437,685.84 

67,284.44 

53,804.23 

599,460.78 

0.00 

1,176.84 

0.00 

7.32 

4,132.14 

0.00 

0.00 

96.58 

3,287.17 

Date: 03/10/2016 
Time: 15:54:07 

Ending 
Balance 

( 1,088,892.97) 

(85,337.21) 

(68,053.53) 

0.00 

(4,403.59) 

(59.16) 

(72.72) 

150.79 

0.00 

24,933.37 

(1,221z735.02} 

(1,221,735.02) 

(1,437 ,685.84) 

(67,284.44) 

(53,804.23) 

(599,460. 78) 

0.00 

(1,176.84) 

0.00 

(7.32) 

271.37 

70.72 

0.00 

(96.58) 

43,182.52 



Object Description 

Total 

Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/01/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Beginning 
Balance 

061,146.56} 

Total for Org Key: 0001040 COLLEGEDALE MUNICIPAL (161, 146.56) 

Key: 0001050 RIDGESIDE MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAP TAX 
22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

2271 I PROPERTY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22755 SANITATION 
22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001050 RIDGESIDE MUNICIPAL 

Key: 0001060 LAKESITE 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OFT AX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX l&P 

22714 PERSONAL TY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONALTY TAX REFUND 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001060 LAKESITE 

Report: TR2031 _Trustee_ Report_ 2008_04_18 

User: Jackie Ware 

(11,917.50) 

(671.98) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
(3,300.00) 

251.79 

(15,637.69) 

(15,637.69) 

(7,044.36) 

(338.00) 

(246.61) 

0.00 
(21.24) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
153.00 

(72497.21} 

(7,497.21) 

Page: 7 

Debit Credit Ending 
Amount Amount Balance 

212,090.48 2, 166,935.34 (221152991.42} 

212,090.48 2, 166,935.34 (2,115,991.42) 

11,917.50 36,869.48 (36,869.48) 

671.98 3,638.64 (3,638.64) 
0.00 107.82 (107.82) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 200.28 (200.28) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
3,300.00 9,300.00 (9,300.00) 

816.32 251.79 816.32 

16,705.80 502368.01 ( 49,299.90) 

16,705.80 50,368.01 (49,299.90) 

7,044.36 28,804.03 (28,804.03) 

338.00 273.25 (273.25) 
246.61 882.39 (882.39) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
21.24 289.92 (289.92) 

0.00 0.12 (0.12) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
0.00 0.00 0.00 

605.00 153.00 605.00 

82255.21 302402.71 (292644.71) 

8,255.21 30,402.71 (29,644.71) 

Date: 03/10/2016 
Time: 15:54:07 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 02/01/2016 to 02/29/2016 

Object Description 

Key: 0001070 WALDEN MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P 

22714 PERSONAL TY TAX I&P 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001070 WALDEN MUNICIPAL 

Key: 0001080 CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX 

22775 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

Total Key: 0001080 CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

Total for Org Key: 0001080 CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

TOT AL CASH HELD FOR MUNICIPALITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Total for Report: 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report _2008_04_18 

User: Jackie Ware 
Page: 

Beginning 
Balance 

(23,974.17) 

(1, 165.09) 

(73.41) 

0.00 

(23.00) 

(1.25) 

504.74 

{24, 732.18) 

(24,732.18) 

(379,799.77) 

0.00 

{3792799.77) 

(379,799.77) 

(1,686, 766.19) 

(25,458,043.56) 

(0.00) 

8 

Debit 
Amount 

23,974.17 

1,165.09 

73.41 

0.00 

23.00 

1.25 

1,896.99 

27!133.91 

27,133.91 

380,409.61 

10,379.19 

3902788.80 

390,788.80 

2,332,927.39 

526,930,090.66 

941,638,777.84 

Credit 
Amount 

89,295.32 

1,421.71 

3,894.76 

0.00 

236.50 

1.08 

504.74 

95,354.l 1 

95,354.11 

428,480.31 

10,379.19 

4382859.50 

438,859.50 

8,051,788.18 

548,806,965.12 

941,638,777.84 

Date: 03/10/2016 
Time: 15:54:07 

Ending 
Balance 

(89,295.32) 

(1,421.71) 

(3,894.76) 

0.00 

(236.50) 

(1.08) 

1,896.99 

{92,952.38) 

(92,952.38) 

(427,870.47) 

0.00 

{4272870.47) 

( 427 ,870.4 7) 

(7,405,626.98) 

(47,334,918.02) 

(0.00) 



WILLIAM F. (BILL) KNOWLES 
County Clerk 

MEMO 

HAMIL TON COUNTY 

Off icE Of TltE CouNTY CLERI< 
ROOM 201, COURTHOUSE, CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE 37402 

TO: Members, Hamilton County Commission 

FROM: Bill Knowles 

DATE: March 10, 2016 

Attached is a copy of the monthly Trustee's excess fee report for the month of 
February, 2016. 

WFK/dkr 

Cc: County Mayor Jim Coppinger 
County Auditor Bill McGriff 
Finance Administrator Albert Kiser 
Patricia Moore, Legislative Administrator 



Hamilton County Trustee 
Monthly Report of Fee and Commission Fund 
FISCAL YEAR: 2016 

February 2016 

REVENUES 
44170 - MISCELLANEOUS REFUNDS 

44180 - CONTRACT INCOME 
44201 - STATUTORY FEES 1 % 
44202 - STATUTORY FEES 2% 

44203 - STATUTORY FEES OTHER 
44204 - DELINQUENT TAX FEES 

46112 - INTEREST 
46116 - INTEREST - NOW ACCOUNTS 
Total REVENUES: 

EXPENDITURES 
51001 - SALARIES 
51001 - CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 
53004 - REP & MAINT AUTOMOBILES 
53014 - BOOKS AND PAMPLETS 
53018 - CELLULAR & PAGER SERVICE 
53037- SPECIAL LEGAL SERVICES 
53042 - MEETINGS, SEMINARS, ETC. 
53044 - POSTAGE, FREIGHT AND OTHER 
53045 - LEGAL NOTICES AND ADVERTISING 
53047 - MEMBERSHIPS 
53049 - PARKING 
53050 - MISC PURCHASED SERVICE 

53051 - CONTRACT LEGAL SERVICES 
53059 - SECURITY SERVICES 

53065 - BANK ANALYSIS FEE 
54001 - OFFICE SUPPLIES & FORMS 
54002 - SMALL TOOLS & MINOR FURNITURE 
54004 - KITCHEN FOOD & SUPPLIES 
54030 - MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES & PARTS 

57007 - PERFORMANCE & SURETY BONDS 
55080 - EXCESS FEES TRANSFERS TO CO. GEN. BUDGET 
58001 - RENT ON BUILDINGS 
59021 - M&E COMPUTER HARDWARE 
59022 - SOFTWARE AND SUPPLIES 
59092 - MISC REFUNDS 
59099 - BUILDING REPAIR/RENOVATION 
66000 - PAYROLL EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 

Total EXPENDITURES: 

Revenues over (under) Expenditures 

Excess Fees at Beginning of Period 

,,,,, ..... ,,,,, 
,,,, \.. BED"1t. ' 1,, 

.... ~~ ········ ~~,, '~~--.· .. ~ 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true report $..:) ••• • &T~'111 •• • ._ ~ 

~to~(,, ~ ro; ~:S- \ ~ 
Not ry Public I } i \ ~i~~: E 
My Commission Expires &;d_O If? ~ ~-·· ,ua\lC / ~ 

r r -, ... ~··· ··-~ ~ ,, ~~ ·········· ov .... 1'1,, 'IL TON 0 ,,,"' 
''''"""''' 

188,929.97 
2, 124,377 .39 

289.06 
18,428.73 

1,353.32 

2,333,378.47 

63,588.26 

285.37 

100.86 

402.72 
2,187.57 

0.65 
672.20 

10,960.66 

134.40 

167.43 

78,500.12 

2,254,878.35 

3,999,500.49 

6,254,378.84 

YTD 
February 2016 

200.00 
60,000.00 

1,594,269.36 
5,419,813.98 

509.38 
189,269.00 

3,345.03 

7,267,406.75 

521 ,346.78 

2,501 .79 
70.00 

215.00 
11.20 

100.86 
10.00 

3,221 .76 
2,801 .52 

753.58 
4,989.35 

67,455.61 
14,900.02 

854.90 
175.31 

1, 132,901 .98 

4 ,024.67 
1,039.48 

4,704.90 

1,762,078.71 

5,505,328.04 

749,050.80 

6,254,378.84 

RECEIVED 
Date 3- ] 0 ~ IL, 

Prepared:jw 

By<UJ~~oo. "° 
W.F. (Bill) Knowles 

County Clerk 



( 

'· 



WILLIAM F. (BILL) KNOWLES 
County Clerk 

MEMO 

HAMIL TON COUNTY 

Office Of The County Clerk 
ROOM 201 COURTHOUSE, CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE 37402 

TO: Members, Hamilton County Commission 

FROM: Bill Knowles ~ 

DATE: February 10, 2016 

In accordance with TCA §67-5-1902, I am attaching a copy of the monthly Trustee 
report for the month of January 2016. 

WFK/dkr 

Cc: County Mayor Jim Coppinger 
County Auditor Bill McGriff 
Finance Administrator Albert Kiser 
Patricia Moore, Legislative Administrator 



Object 

Cash in Bank 

11001 

11010 

11020 

11030 

Description 

PETTY CASH 

TRUSTEE CONCENTRATION 

CHILDCARE 

FOOD SERVICE DEPOSITORY 

Total Cash in Bank 

Bank Deposits in Transit 

11015 

11050 

CASH RECEIPTS SWEEP 

BOE CASH RECEPT SWEEP 

Total Bank Deposits in Transit 

Bank Outstanding Checks 

22201 

22202 

22206 

22280 

22281 

22285 

22286 

Other Assets 

11402 

Other Assets 

11505 

AIP CHECK PAY ABLE 

FOOD SERVICE CHECK PAY ABLE 

DOE AIP CHECK PAYABLE 

COUNTY PAYROLL CHECKS PAYABLE 

DOE PAYROLL CHECK PAYABLE 

DOE PAYROLL TAX PAYABLE 

DOE RETIREMENT PLANS 

Total Bank Outstanding Checks 

TOTAL CASH 

DUE FROM BAD CHECKS 

Total Other Assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

UNBILLED RECEIV ALBES 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008_04_18 

User: Jackie Ware 

Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 0I /01 /2016 to 01/31 /2016 

Page: 

Beginning 
Balance 

2,451.98 

19, 714,316.51 

221,612.10 

6,269,743.37 

26,208, 123.96 

11,620.19 

(57.65) 

11..562.54 

(1,976,545.02) 

( 47,590.90) 

(949,905.36) 

(10,504.36) 

{6,061.35) 

0.00 

(0.00) 

{2,990,606.992 

23,229,079.51 

885.07 

885.07 

23,229,964.58 

0.00 

Debit 
Amount 

0.00 

89,365,906.78 

223,565.02 

1,772,116.26 

91,361,588.06 

36,584,949.51 

47,125,853.36 

83, 710,802.87 

9,812,521.45 

398,728.26 

9,582,673.14 

4,292,654.82 

11,168,178.70 

4,137,498.14 

3,411,923.79 

42,804,178.30 

217,876,569.23 

672.57 

672.57 

217,877,241.80 

0.00 

RECEIVED 
Date 6.-lo~llc:> 

By~~ 
W.F. (BilJ) Knowles 

County Clerk 

Credit 
Amount 

0.00 

85,136,158.70 

221,612.10 

914,502.77 

86,272,273 .57 

36,585,392.40 

47,179,808.02 

83, 765,200.42 

9,547,230.38 

686,623.89 

12,344,995.86 

4,296,972.63 

11,168,178.70 

4,154,228.01 

3,411,923.79 

45,610,153.26 

215,647,627.25 

672.57 

672.57 

215,648,299.82 

0.00 

Date: 02/10/2016 
Time: 08:44:41 

Ending 
Balance 

2,451.98 

23,944,064.59 

223,565.02 

7,127,356.86 

31,297,438.45 

11,177.30 

(54,012.31) 

(42,835.01) 

(1,711,253.95) 

(335,486.53) 

(3, 712,228.08) 

(14,822.17) 

(6,061.35) 

(16,729.87) 

(0.00) 

(5,796,581.95) 

25,458,021.49 

885.07 

885.07 

25,458,906.56 

0.00 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 01 101 /2016 to 01 /31 /2016 

Beginnin2 Debit Credit Ending 
Object Description Balance Amount Amount Balance 

Total Other Assets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TOT AL ASSETS 23,229,964.58 217,877,241.80 215,648,299.82 25,458,906.56 

Cash Held for Hamilton County Funds 

22250 BOARD OF EDUCATION (7,272,462.39) 31,385,477.17 37,943,489.58 (13,830,474.80) 

22251 FOOD SERVICE (6,222,094.82) 1,202,424.63 1,772,142.49 (6,791,812.68) 

22255 BOE PAYROLL (84,558.74) 18,314,666.16 18,460,228.52 (230,121.10) 

22256 BOE SELF INSURANCE (1,281,730.92) 6,245,876.32 3,671,385.73 1,292,759.67 

22257 CAPITAL MAINTENANCE (160,862.95) 332,134.42 12.95 171,258.52 

22401 EXCESS FEES (1,971,987.47) 2,028,734.88 664,321.13 (607,573.72) 

22407 PAYROLL COUNTY (1,420,734.34) 7,897,288.33 7,296,688.78 (820,134.79) 

22408 STORMWATER ( 1,070,626.07) 30,271.85 40,737.57 (1,081,091.79) 

22409 DRUG COURT 21,355.95 16,288.31 91,209.72 (53,565.46) 

22410 COUNTY GENERAL (509, 703.09) 37,491,324.43 38,607,530.22 (1,625,908.88) 

22412 GENERAL DEBT SERVICE (1,000.15) 521,058.44 520,577.64 (519.35) 

22413 OPEB TRUST (2,537.43) 48.99 0.42 (2,488.86) 

22414 EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT (111, 762.48) 10,451.38 10,000.00 (111,311.10) 

22415 TEACHERS RETIREMENT (1,003.55) 600.00 1,299.00 (1,702.55) 

22416 LAW LIBRARY (500.09) 2,611.59 2,601.69 (490.19) 

22418 ECONOMIC CRIMES (500.12) 2,202.76 2,202.72 (500.08) 

22419 GEN GOV'T BOND PROJECTS 1,526,528.27 1,294,918.10 7,798.09 2,813,648.28 

22420 CAP IT AL PROJECTS (10,001.77) 87,852.47 87,695.06 (9,844.36) 

22421 INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT (2,500.69) 1,740.69 1,740.42 (2,500.42) 

22422 RIVERWALK/FISHING PIER 607,011.67 848,670.28 500,000.00 955,681.95 

22423 RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECTS 33,476.14 19,679.58 53,200.88 (45.16) 

22426 SELF INSURANCE (2,475.24) 4,691,642.55 4,696,393.86 (7,226.55) 

22428 LIABILITY INSURANCE (2,502.12) 103,364.07 103,362.51 (2,500.56) 

22430 HOTEL/MOTEL (521,374.93) 521,374.93 413,822.30 ( 413,822.30) 

22434 JUVENILE COURT CLERK AGENCY (1,002.72) 292,082.08 294,432.12 (3,352.76) 

22435 FACILITY BONDS-SERIES 2010A (2,816.04) 0.00 0.47 (2,816.51) 

22436 BOND FUND-SERIES 2010B (875,153.01) 0.00 145.86 (875,298.87) 

22437 ECONOMIC BONDS-SERIES 2010C (50.00) 50.00 O.Ql (0.01) 

Report: TR2031 _Trustee _Report_ 2008_04_18 Page: 2 Date 02/10/2016 
User: Jackie Ware Time 08:44:41 



Object Description 

22449 SCHOOL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

22461 CRJMINAL COURT 

22462 CRJMINAL COURT SESSIONS 

22463 DELINQUENT COLLECTIONS 

22472 LINE OF CREDIT 

22473 2015ABOND 

22483 SHERJFF 

22484 DRUG ENFORCEMENT-SHERJFF 

22485 TN ST ATE SEX OFFENDER 

22489 SHERJFF'S SPECIAL PROJECTS 

22498 SYMPRO INVESTMENT POOL 

Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 01 /01 /2016 to 01/31/2016 

Beginning 
Balance 

(41,782.03) 

( 449,069.85) 

414,476.92 

(402,308.98) 

(584,480.45) 

( 152,400.26) 

(6,500.06) 

(500.15) 

(71,978. 70) 

(13,090.15) 

4,008,221.90 
--

Total Cash Held for Hamilton County Funds (16,640,980.91) 

Cash Held for Others 

22801 OVER/SHORT 
23302 PARTIAL TAXES-PENDING PAYMENT 

Total Cash Held for Others 

Clearing Account Activity 

11016 PROPERTY TAX SWEEP 

22800 INTEREST PAYMENT FUTURE 

Total Clearing Account Activity 

Liabilities not Applicable 

22200 VENDOR-SYSTEM 

22400 TEMPORARY CASH TRANSFER 

22500 CRJMINAL CT CK PENAL FARM FINE 

Total Liabilities not Applicable 

Clearing Account Activity - County Funds 

Key: 0001130 COUNTY OCCUPANCY TAX 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX 

Report TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _ l 8 

User: Jackie Ware 

(69.42) 

(209.06) 

(278.48) 

2,159.01 

0.00 
-

2,159.01 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

Page: 3 

Debit 
Amount 

2,474,782.77 

126,095.21 
344,546.63 

19,669.31 

0.00 

0.00 

3,921 ,184.79 

7,454.18 

972.50 

0.00 

34, 135,378.60 

154,372,918.40 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

23,340,515.15 

4,757.65 

23,345,272.80 

337,081.44 

8,000,000.00 

0.00 

8,337,081.44 

425,146.57 

Credit 
Amount 

0.00 

89,113.30 

257,330.92 

63,531.26 

97.41 

77,805.06 

3,991,131.26 

7,432.32 

2,262.05 

2.18 

41, 768,511.02 

161,500,236.52 

39.82 

4,956.95 

4 996.77 

23,341,240.25 

4,757.65 

23,345,997 .90 

337,081.44 

8,000,000.00 

0.00 

8,337,081.44 

425,146.57 

Date 02/10/2016 
Time: 08:44:41 

Ending 
Balance 

2,433,000. 74 

(412,087.94) 

501,692.63 

(446,170.93) 

(584,577.86) 

(230,205.32) 

(76,446.53) 

(478.29) 

(73,268.25) 

(13,092.33) 

(3,624,910.52) 

(23,768.299.03) 

(109.24) 

(5,166.01) 

(5,275.25) 

1,433.91 

0.00 

1,433.91 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 0I /01 /2016 to 01/31/2016 

Object Description 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total for Org Key: 0001130 COUNTY OCCUPANCY TAX 

Key: 0001150 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22703 IN LIEU OF TAX 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22709 IN LIEU OF-TVA 

22711 PROPER TY TAX I&P 

22712 OSAPTAXI&P 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22722 OSAP TAX REFUND 

22724 PERSONALTY TAX REFUND 

22731 PROPERTY TAX I&P REUND 

22734 PERSONALTY TAX I&P REFUND 

22799 COMM DUE ONT AX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001150 DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

Total Clearing Account Activity - County Funds 

Cash Held for Municipalities 

Key: 0001010 CITY OF EAST RIDGE 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAP TAX 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OFT AX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _ l 8 

User: Jackie Ware 

Beginning 
Balance 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 
-
0.00 
-
0.00 

(1,594,903.12) 

0.00 

(30,349.91) 

0.00 

(1,869.70) 

Page: 4 

Debit Credit Ending 
Amount Amount Balance 

8,444.22 8,444.22 0.00 

433,590.79 433,590.79 0.00 

8,329,351.73 8,329,351.73 0.00 

845,741.45 845,741.45 0.00 

620,006.91 620,006.91 0.00 

747, 111.03 747,111.03 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

31 ,581.98 31 ,581.98 0.00 

105.55 105.55 0.00 

948.78 948.78 0.00 

22,871.70 22,871.70 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

862.93 862.93 0.00 

54.67 54.67 0.00 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

211 ,021.16 211,021.16 0.00 

1028092657.89 10,809,657 .89 0.00 

10,809,657.89 10,809,657.89 0.00 

11,243,248.68 11,243,248.68 0.00 

1,594,903 .12 380,372.57 (380,372.57) 

0.00 12,851.66 (12,851.66) 

30,349.91 17,202.81 (17,202.81) 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

1,869.70 1,453.09 (1,453.09) 

Date: 02/1012016 
Time: 08 :44:41 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 01/01 /2016 to 01 /31/2016 

Beginning 
Object Description Balance 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX I&P (42.50) 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 3,054.86 

22724 PERSONALTY TAX REFUND 0.00 

22731 PROPERTY TAX l&P REUND 84.80 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX (23,917.50) 

22755 SANITATION (697, 103.53) 

22756 SANITATION I & P (841.99) 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 32,719.68 

Total Cash Held for Municipalities {2,313,168.91} 

Total for Org Key: 0001010 CITY OF EAST RIDGE 

Key: 0001020 RED BANK MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX l&P 

22714 PERSONAL TY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONAL TY TAX REFUND 

22731 PROPERTY TAX l&P REUND 

22741 STORMW ATER FEES 

22742 STORMW ATER FEES I&P 

22755 SANITATION 

22756 SANITATION I & P 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001020 RED BANK MUNICIPAL 

Report: TR203 I_ Trustee_ Report_ 2008_04_18 

User: Jackie Ware 

(2,313, 168.91) 

(904,546.02) 

0.00 

(11,494.19) 

0.00 

(768.14) 

0.00 

421.88 

0.00 

0.00 

(84,888.00) 

(64.80) 

(438,343.27) 

(413.07) 

19,177.26 

(1,420,918.35} 

(1,420,918.35) 

Page: 5 

Debit 
Amount 

42.50 

910.59 

1.07 

0.00 

23,917.50 

697,103.53 

841.99 

8,496.63 

2,3581436.54 

2,358,436.54 

904,546.02 

0.00 

11,494.19 

0.00 

768.14 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

53.42 

84,888.00 

64.80 

438,343.27 

413.07 

4,207.34 

1,444,778.25 

1,444,778.25 

Credit 
Amount 

1.76 

3,054.86 

0.00 

84.80 

27,723.46 

127,566.99 

575.96 

32,719.69 

603,607.65 

603,607.65 

183,973.63 

9,353.14 

3,808.41 

0.00 
892.44 

6.50 

421.88 

0.00 

0.00 

24,696.00 

77.22 

64,599.20 

598.30 

19,177.26 

307,603.98 

307,603.98 

Date 02/10/2016 
Time: 08:44:41 

Ending 
Balance 

(1.76) 

910.59 

1.07 

0.00 
(27,723.46) 

(127,566.99) 

(575.96) 

8,496.62 

{558,340.02} 

(558,340.02) 

(183,973.63) 

(9,353.14) 

(3,808.41) 

0.00 
(892.44) 

(6.50) 

0.00 

0.00 
53.42 

(24,696.00) 
(77.22) 

(64,599.20) 

(598.30) 

4,207.34 

{283,744.08} 

(283,744.08) 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

FortheDateRange: 01 /01 /2016 to 01 /31 /2016 

Object Description 

Key: 0001030 SODDY DAISY MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P 

22714 PERSONAL TY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONAL TY TAX REFUND 

22799 COMM DUE ONT AX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001030 SODDY DAISY MUNICIPAL 

Key: 0001040 COLLEGEDALE MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P 

22712 OSAPTAXl&P 

22714 PERSONALTY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONAL TY TAX REFUND 

22731 PROPERTY TAX I&P REUND 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUP ANCY TAX 

22799 COMM DUE ONT AX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001040 COLLEGEDALE MUNICIPAL 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _I 8 

User: Jackie Ware 
Page: 

Beginning 
Balance 

(1,136,714.41) 

0.00 

(7,471 .67) 

0.00 

(1,029.14) 

(0.61) 

1,435.96 

0.00 

22,875.60 

(1 ,120,904.27) 

(1,120,904.27) 

(961,334. 79) 

0.00 

(19,581.85) 

0.00 

(293.53) 

0.00 

(2.40) 

4, 188.30 

0.00 

0.26 

(179.60) 

19,542.28 

(957,661.33) 

(957,661.33) 

6 

Debit 
Amount 

1,136,714.41 

0.00 

7,471.67 

0.00 

1,029.14 

0.61 

87.23 

0.00 

5,221.81 
--

1, 150,524.87 

1, 150,524.87 

961,334.79 

0.00 

19,581.85 

0.00 

293.53 

0.00 

2.40 

4,132.14 

0.00 

0.00 

179.60 

3,287.17 

988,811.48 

988,811.48 

Credit 
Amount 

231,487.50 

11,784.14 

17,255.31 

0.00 

618.54 

32.23 

1,435.96 

0.00 

22,875.60 

285,489.28 

285,489.28 

160,072.94 

5,337.57 

2,359.56 

0.00 

643.31 

0.00 

1.76 

4,188 .30 

0.00 

0.26 

150.73 

19,542.28 

192,296.71 

192,296.71 

Date 02/10/2016 
Time: 08:44:41 

Ending 
Balance 

(231,487.50) 

(11 ,784.14) 

(17,255.31) 

0.00 

(618.54) 

(32.23) 

87.23 

0.00 

5,221.81 

(255,868.68) 

(255,868.68) 

(160,072.94) 

(5,337.57) 

(2,359.56) 

0.00 

(643.31) 

0.00 

(1. 76) 

4,132.14 

0.00 

0.00 

(150.73) 

3,287.17 

{161, 146.56} 

(161 ,146.56) 



Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 01 /01 /2016 to 01 /31 /2016 

Beginning 
Object Description Balance 

Key: 0001050 RIDGESIDE MUNICIPAL 

22701 PROPERTY TAX (91, 779.88) 

22702 OSAPTAX 0.00 

22704 PERSONALTY TAX (5.85) 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 0.00 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P (160.20) 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 1,054.75 

22755 SANITATION (23, 700.00) 

22799 COMM DUE ONT AX COLLECTED 1,817.82 

Total (112,773.36) 

Total for Org Key: 0001050 RIDGESIDE MUNICIPAL (112,773.36) 

Key: 0001060 LAKESITE 

22701 PROPERTY TAX 

22702 OSAPTAX 

22704 PERSONAL TY TAX 

22705 IN LIEU OF TAX-EPB 

22711 PROPERTY TAX I&P 

22714 PERSONAL TY TAX I&P 

22721 PROPERTY TAX REFUNDS 

22724 PERSONAL TY TAX REFUND 

22799 COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001060 LAKESITE 

Key: 0001070 WALDEN MUNICIPAL 

22701 

22702 

PROPERTY TAX 

OSAPTAX 

Report: TR203 l _Trustee_ Report_ 2008 _ 04 _ l 8 

User: Jackie Ware 
Page: 

(52,499.14) 

0.00 

(170.41) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,053.39 

{51,616.16} 

(51,616.16) 

(133,074. 70) 

0.00 

7 

Debit 
Amount 

91 ,779.88 

0.00 

5.85 

0.00 

160.20 

0.00 

23,700.00 

251.79 

115 897.72 

115,897.72 

52,499.14 

0.00 

170.41 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

153.00 

52,822.55 

52,822.55 

133,074.70 

0.00 

Credit 
Amount 

I 1,917.50 

671.98 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,054.75 

3,300.00 

1,817.82 

18,762.05 

18,762.05 

7,044.36 

338.00 

246.61 

0.00 

21.24 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

1,053.39 

8,703.60 

8,703.60 

23,974.17 

1,165.09 

Date: 02/10/2016 
Time: 08:44:41 

Ending 
Balance 

(11,917.50) 

(671.98) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

(3,300.00) 

251.79 

(15,637.69} 

(15,637.69) 

(7,044.36) 

(338.00) 

(246.61) 

0.00 

(21.24) 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

153.00 

{7,497.21} 

(7,497.21) 

(23,974.17) 

(1,165.09) 



'" 
Hamilton County 
Trustee Report 

For the Date Range: 01 /01 /2016 to 01 /31 /2016 

Object 

22704 

22705 

22711 

22714 

22799 

Description 

PERSONALTY TAX 

IN LIEU OFT AX-EPB 

PROPERTY TAX I&P 

PERSONAL TY TAX I&P 

COMM DUE ON TAX COLLECTED 

Total 

Total for Org Key: 0001070 WALDEN MUNICIPAL 

Key: 0001080 CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

22751 HOTEL MOTEL OCCCUPANCY TAX 

22775 TAX INCREMENT FINANCING 

Total Key: 0001080 CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

Total for Org Key: 0001080 CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 

TOT AL CASH HELD FOR MUNICIPALITIES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

Total for Report: 

Report: TR203 I_ Trustee_ Report_2008 _ 04 _I 8 

User: Jackie Ware 
Page: 

Beginning 
Balance 
(241.46) 

0.00 

(l l.00) 

0.00 

2,666.54 

(130,660.62) 

(130,660.62) 

( 483, 162.20) 

l.00 

(483,161.20) 

(483,161.20) 
- -

(6,590,864.20) 

(23,229,964.58) 

(0.00) 

8 

Debit 
Amount 

241.46 

0.00 

11.00 

0.00 

504.74 

133,831.90 

133,831.90 

484,744.50 

12,751.80 

497 496.30 

497,496.30 

7,176,190.40 

204,041,120.93 

421,918,362.73 

Credit 
Amount 

73.41 

0.00 

23.00 

l.25 

2,666.54 
--

27,903.46 

27,903.46 --

381,382.07 

12,752.80 
--

3942134.87 

394,134.87 

2,272,092.39 

206,270,062.91 

421,918,362.73 

Date: 02/10/2016 
Time: 08:44:41 

Ending 
Balance 
(73.41) 

0.00 

(23 .00) 

(1 .25) 

504.74 

(24, 732.18) 

(24, 732.18) 

(379,799.77) 

0.00 

(379,799.77) 

(379,799.77) 

(1,686,766.19) 
-

(25,458,906.56) 

(0.00) 



WILLIAM F. (BILL) KNOWLES 
County Clerk 

MEMO 

HAMIL TON COUNTY 

Office Of The County Clerk 
ROOM 201 COURTHOUSE, CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE 37402 

TO: Members, Hamilton County Commission 

FROM: Bill Knowles ~ 

DATE: February 10, 2016 

Attached is a copy of the Trustee's excess fee report for the month of January 2016. 

WFK/dkr 

Cc: County Mayor Jim Coppinger 

County Auditor Bill McGriff 
Finance Administrator Albert Kiser 
Patricia Moore, Legislative Administrator 



Hamilton County Trustee 
Monthly Report of Fee and Commission Fund 
FISCAL YEAR: 2016 

REVENUES 
44170 - MISCELLANEOUS REFUNDS 
44180 - CONTRACT INCOME 
44201 - STATUTORY FEES 1 % 
44202 - STATUTORY FEES 2% 
44203 - STATUTORY FEES OTHER 
44204 - DELINQUENT TAX FEES 
46112 - INTEREST 
46116 - INTEREST - NOW ACCOUNTS 
Total REVENUES: 

EXPENDITURES 
51001 - SALARIES 
51001 - CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 
53004 - REP & MAINT AUTOMOBILES 
53014 - BOOKS AND PAMPLETS 
53018- CELLULAR & PAGER SERVICE 
53037- SPECIAL LEGAL SERVICES 
53042 - MEETINGS, SEMINARS, ETC. 
53044 - POSTAGE, FREIGHT AND OTHER 
53045 - LEGAL NOTICES AND ADVERTISING 
53047 - MEMBERSHIPS 
53049 - PARKING 
53050 - MISC PURCHASED SERVICE 
53051 - CONTRACT LEGAL SERVICES 
53059 - SECURITY SERVICES 
53065 - BANK ANALYSIS FEE 
54001 - OFFICE SUPPLIES & FORMS 
54002 - SMALL TOOLS & MINOR FURNITURE 
54004 - KITCHEN FOOD & SUPPLIES 
54030 - MISCELLANEOUS SUPPLIES & PARTS 
57007 - PERFORMANCE & SURETY BONDS 
55080 - EXCESS FEES TRANSFERS TO CO. GEN. BUDGET 
58001 - RENT ON BUILDINGS 
59021 - M&E COMPUTER HARDWARE 
59022 - SOFTWARE AND SUPPLIES 
59092 - MISC REFUNDS 
59099 - BUILDING REPAIR/RENOVATION 
66000- PAYROLL EXPENSE 

ADJUSTMENTS 
Total EXPENDITURES: 

Revenues over (under) Expenditures 

Excess Fees at Beginning of Period 

er, Trustee 
Hamilton County, Tennessee 

,,,,, .. ,,,,, 
,,, L B 111 

,,... \I'-~ • ~o ,,, 
........ S .. ······ · ~', I he,eby oertffy '"" lhe fo,.golog ''W 'epo'\:' ci;' / ·· •• ~ < 

~to before m~~. :;} O / !'$ / ST ATC \ < -=:, 
c- <A Q.,...__ r - d t(,df : : OF ~ : 

Notary Public ' / j : ! TENNESSEE ! : 
My Commission Expires 4i O{O I g ~ ,,,eo \ NPOUT

8
ARY / § 

' r , ->"""?, • UC ·~ .. , . . ' , ~ .. .. ""' , .. .. .. .-, /.1 •••••• • \~ , .. 
,, .., "ION cov ,,, ,,, ,,, 

''''""''' 

January 2016 

198,028.61 
466,110.02 

115.40 
29,562.98 

1,011.20 

694,828.21 

69,387.97 

284.85 

402.72 
350.75 

26.51 
659.98 

11,840.62 

46.15 

405.78 

(10,058. 79) 

73,346.54 

621,481.67 

3,378,018.82 

3,999,500.49 

YTD 
January 2016 

200.00 
60,000.00 

1,405,339.39 
3,295,436.59 

220.32 
170,840.27 

1,991.71 

4,934,028.28 

457,758.52 

2,216.42 
70.00 

215.00 
11.20 

10.00 
2,819.04 

613.95 
752.93 

4,317.15 
56,494.95 
14,900.02 

720.50 
175.31 

1, 132,901.98 

4,024.67 
1,039.48 

4,537.47 

1,683,578.59 

3,250,449.69 

749,050.80 

3,999,500.49 

RECEIVED 
Date 2..- l 0-1 ta 

By 0.JJ; .. J?~.b.1& 
W.F. (Bill) Knowles 

County Clerk 

Prepared:jw 





No. 416-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATH OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFF. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF” 
have taken the oath of office. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 



 

 

 
3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF” 

are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  
 

 4. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 
is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 



























No. 416-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  
A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO THE HAMILTON COUNTY 
EMPLOYEE APPEALS BOARD TO FILL AN UNEXPIRED TERM ENDING 
AUGUST 5, 2017. 
  
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Government Personnel Rules and Regulations 

provide for the appointment of an Employee Appeals Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioners representing Districts 7, 8, and 9 wish to appoint John 

Shackleford to serve the unexpired term of Bill Reesor, ending August 
5, 2017. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That John Shackleford is hereby appointed to the Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board 
for the term stated above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 



John E. Shackleford 
8095 Angie Ln. 
Chattanooga Tn. 37421 
423-280-2994 
 
 
Hamilton County Recreation Board Member from 2009-2015. 
Served 2 terms under Ron Purdy/ Tom 
 
Past president and founding member Nightside Pachyderm club for 2 years. 
 
Transportation Director for Hamilton County Fair 26 years. 
 
Publicity chairman for Harrison Ruitan- 2015/2016 
 
 
 



No. 416-3 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT BY THE COUNTY MAYOR OF 
ONE MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR A TERM ENDING NOVEMBER 1, 2019.  
 
WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 614-15 this county legislative body adopted an amendment 

to Chapter 297 of the Private Acts of 1976, and Chapter 71 of the Private Acts 
of 2012, and any other acts amendatory thereto, relative to the Hospital 
Authority created to operate Baroness Erlanger Hospital, T.C. Thompson 
Children’s Hospital and other facilities, as passed by the 108th General 
Assembly of the State of Tennessee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, certain members of the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Hospital Authority 

Board of Trustees are appointed by the County Mayor and confirmed by the 
Board of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has appointed Blaise W. Baxter, M.D. to a term of four (4) 

years beginning November 1, 2015 and ending November 1, 2019. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the appointment of Blaise W. Baxter, M.D. to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County 
Hospital Authority Board of Trustees is hereby confirmed for the term stated above. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 





































No. 416-4 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO CHATTANOOGA’S KIDS ON THE 
BLOCK, INC., IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Chester Bankston has expressed a desire to allocate One Thousand 

Dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Chattanooga’s Kids on 
the Block, Inc., to assist with ongoing programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
Chattanooga’s Kids on the Block, Inc., to assist with ongoing programs. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 







No. 416-5 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO A NIGHT TO REMEMBER, INC., IN THE 
AMOUNT OF THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 
DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FIVE. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Greg Beck has expressed a desire to allocate Three Thousand Dollars 

($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to A Night to Remember, Inc., to 
assist with their scholarship program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to 
A Night to Remember, Inc., to assist with their scholarship program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 416-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($10,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES (AS ALLOTTED TO 
DISTRICT TWO) TO ASSIST THE TOWN OF RED BANK WITH THEIR DIXIE YOUTH 
PROGRAM. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Red Bank supports a Dixie Youth Program for the children/youth in the 

area; and 
 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Jim Fields has expressed a desire to use Ten Thousand Dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to assist the Town of Red Bank 
with said program; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the expenditure of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies 
(as allotted to District Two) be approved to assist the Town of Red Bank with their Dixie Youth 
Program. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 416-7 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO KAPPA FOUNDATION OF 
CHATTANOOGA IN THE AMOUNT OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative 

Body to make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and 

civic organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on 
their nonprofit work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Warren Mackey has expressed a desire to allocate Two Thousand Dollars 

($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Kappa Foundation of 
Chattanooga to assist with their scholarship fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens 

of Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED:  
 
That Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated o 
Kappa Foundation of Chattanooga to assist with their scholarship fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are 

appropriated shall file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a 
copy of an annual report of its business affairs and transactions and the proposed 
use of the County’s funds.  Such annual report shall be prepared and certified by 
the chief financial officer of such nonprofit organization in accordance with 
Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
 



 

 

2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 
organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general 
welfare of the residents of the County. 

 
3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County 

in providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in 
compliance with Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and 
all other laws which may apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable 
and civic organizations and so this is made subject to compliance with any and all 
of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 416-8 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AN INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
CHATTANOOGA AND HAMILTON COUNTY FOR MODIFICATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS 
TO THE CHATTANOOGA/HAMILTON COUNTY FIRING RANGE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED ONE HUNDRED FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($150,000.00) AND TO PROVIDE 
FOR EQUAL SHARING OF ONGOING OPERATIONAL COSTS OF SAME. 
 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Hamilton County benefit from officers who are properly trained and 

equipped to handle hostile situations which may occur while on duty; and 
 
WHEREAS, these funds would be utilized to allow a new portable building transported to the site, to 

install a 30-Position Target System; A 90-foot Running Man Target System; a shoot-
house; a training lab; upgrade the current speakers and sound system; replace defective 
items currently being utilized at the range; and to upgrade security and maintenance as 
well as additional parking; and 

 
WHEREAS, the firing range provides a safe environment for training to take place, but in which the 

need exists to update the facility for an estimated total cost of Three Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($300,000.00); and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chattanooga and Hamilton County will share equally in the cost of updating 

the facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, Hamilton County’s contribution will be provided from bond proceeds in an amount not 

to exceed One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000.00); and 
 
WHEREAS, the operational costs of the facility will be shared equally by both parties and is currently 

included in the Sheriff’s Fiscal Year 2015-2016 budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an Interlocal Agreement with the City of 
Chattanooga upon the terms and conditions contained therein for (1) modifications and improvements  
 



 

 

to the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Firing Range in an amount not to exceed $150,000 and (2) 
providing for equal sharing of ongoing operational costs. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 

THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (Hereinafter referred to as “Agreement”) is made 

and entered into by and between the CITY OF CHATTANOOGA, TENNESSEE, a municipal 

corporation and political subdivision of the State of Tennessee (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and 

HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, a political subdivision  of the State of Tennessee (hereinafter 

referred to as “County”), regarding the upgrading and modification of the Chattanooga/Hamilton County 

firing range (hereinafter referred to as “FY2015-2016 Project”) located at 300 Moccasin Bend Road, 

Chattanooga, Tennessee, and providing an agreement for the sharing of the costs of the day-to-day 

operations of said firing range.  This Agreement is entered into this _____ day of __________, 2016. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Tennessee Code Annotated Section 5-1-113 provides legal authority for the 

county legislative body of any county and the chief legislative body of any municipality that lies within 

the boundaries of that county to enter into any such agreements or contractual relations as may be 

desirable or necessary for the purpose of permitting the county and municipality to conduct, operate or 

maintain, either jointly or otherwise, desirable and necessary services or functions under such terms as 

may be agreed upon by the two entities; and 

WHEREAS, the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Firing Range will serve the needs of the 

Hamilton County Sheriff’s Office, the City of Chattanooga Police Department, other law enforcement 

agencies in Hamilton County, and could, pursuant to law, serve other law enforcement in surrounding 

counties and municipalities. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises stated herein, the City and County 

do hereby agree as follows: 

The general purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the joint funding of said 

FY2015-2016 Project and equal joint funding of the cost of daily operations thereof. 



1. The City and County will share equally in all costs and modifications for the FY2015-

2016 Project; provided, however, that County’s expenditures for these modifications and improvements 

will not exceed One Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($150,000). 

2. The City and County agree to share equally in the ongoing cost of operations and 

maintenance of the firing range.  Such costs shall be reduced by the amount of fees collected by the City 

and/or County from other entities that make use of this facility. 

3. The initial term of the Agreement shall be ten (10) years and thereafter be subject to 

yearly renewal based on the mutual agreement of parties.  Notwithstanding the provisions defining the 

term and renewal of this Agreement, either party may terminate this Agreement upon giving at least 

ninety (90) days written notice prior to June 30 of each year; provided, however, that no such termination 

shall be effective until the completion of construction and payment for construction costs for the FY2015-

2016 Project are accomplished, nor shall any such termination take effect until the beginning of the 

following fiscal year. 

 4. Any additional capital upgrades, modifications, etc. after completion of the FY2015-

2016 Project shall be agreed upon by both parties hereto before commencement of same. 

5. Any use of the facility by other law enforcement agencies may require a fee. 

6. Except as necessary to implement the terms of this Agreement, nothing in this 

Agreement shall be construed as changing the existing rights, responsibilities, and obligations of the 

Parties, whether arising from contract, ordinance, statute, or otherwise. 

7. This is the entire agreement between the Parties.  Any changes, modifications, 

additions and/or amendments are to be in writing and signed by each party hereto. 

8. All notices pertaining to this Agreement shall be in writing, delivered to the parties 

hereto personally by hand, by United States mail, certified or registered, with return receipt requested.   

All notices shall be deemed given when so delivered.  The parties may, by notice as provided above, 

designate a different address to which notice shall be given. 

 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF this _____ day of _______________, 2016. 

 
   CITY OF CHATTANOOGA 
 
 
   By:___________________________________________ 
    Andy Berke, Mayor  
    City Hall, Third Floor 
    101 East 11th Street 
    Chattanooga, Tennessee  37402 
 
    With a copy to: 
     
    City Attorney 
    100 East 11th Street, Suite 200 
    Chattanooga, Tennessee  37402 
 
   HAMILTON COUNTY 
 
 
   By:___________________________________________ 
    Jim Coppinger, Mayor  
    208 Hamilton County Courthouse 
    Chattanooga, Tennessee  37402 
     

With a copy to: 
     

County Attorney 
    Room 204, County Courthouse 
    Chattanooga, Tennessee  37402 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT – FIRING RANGE MODIFICATIONS.DOC 



No. 416-9 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE ISSUANCE OF BONDS FOR THE BENEFIT 
OF WCO AL DP, LLC. 
 
WHEREAS, The Health and Educational Facilities Board of The Metropolitan 

Government of Nashville and Davidson County, Tennessee (the "Issuer"), a 
corporation organized and existing pursuant to Part 3 of Chapter 101, Title 
48 Tennessee Code Annotated, as amended (the "Act"), proposes to issue its 
revenue bonds in one or more series from time to time in the aggregate 
principal amount of not to exceed $20,000,000 (the "Bonds") and to loan 
the proceeds of the Bonds to WCO AL DP, LLC ("WCO"), a Tennessee 
nonprofit limited liability company whose sole member is Woodbine 
Community Organization (WCO), Inc., a Tennessee nonprofit corporation, 
such proceeds to be used by WCO for the purpose of (i) refinancing a loan 
obtained by WCO and used by WCO to acquire 32 residential treatment 
facilities for individuals with intellectual disabilities, each containing eight 
beds, for a total of 256 beds, and four day program service facilities 
(collectively, the "Existing Facilities"), and (ii) financing the acquisition, 
construction, installation and equipping of nine residential treatment 
facilities for individuals with intellectual disabilities, each containing four 
beds, for a total of 36 beds (collectively, the "New Facilities") (the Existing 
Facilities and the New Facilities being referred to herein collectively as the 
"Facilities"), the Existing Facilities being located in the counties of 
Davidson, Hamilton, Knox, Shelby and Williamson, and the New Facilities 
to be located in the counties of Greene, Hamilton and Knox; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that the Board of Commissioners of Hamilton County, 
Tennessee (the "Board") approve the refinancing of the Existing Facilities 
located in Hamilton County, Tennessee (the "Existing Hamilton County 
Facilities") and the financing of the New Facilities to be located in 
Hamilton County, Tennessee (the "New Hamilton County Facilities") (the 
Existing Hamilton County Facilities and the New Hamilton County 



Facilities being referred to herein collectively as the "Hamilton County 
Facilities"), the Hamilton County Facilities being within the jurisdiction of 
the Board; and 

WHEREAS, notice of the intention of the Board to hold a public hearing with respect to 
the proposed plan of financing for the issuance of the Bonds to refinance the 
Existing Hamilton County Facilities and to finance the New Hamilton 
County Facilities was published in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code"); and  

WHEREAS, the Board has on this date conducted the public hearing and, at such 
hearing, afforded an opportunity to all persons desiring to be heard on the 
question of the proposed issuance of the Bonds pursuant to the plan of 
financing for the Hamilton County Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, Section 147(f) of the Code provides that the governmental unit having 
jurisdiction over the issuer of private activity bonds and over the area in 
which any facility financed with the proceeds of such private activity bonds 
is located shall approve the issuance of such bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Facilities are or will be located in Hamilton County, 
Tennessee (the "County"), and the Board is the governmental unit having 
jurisdiction over the County. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 

The Board hereby approves the refinancing of the Existing Hamilton County Facilities 
and the financing of the New Hamilton County Facilities as required by the Act. 

The Board hereby approves the issuance of the Bonds as required by the Act. 

The plan of financing for the issuance of the Bonds by the Issuer from time to time in 
one or more series is hereby approved as follows: 

the Bonds shall be issued in an aggregate principal amount of not to exceed 
$20,000,000; 

the street addresses of the Existing Hamilton County Facilities being refinanced are as 
follows (all being residential treatment facilities except as otherwise noted): 



 

-5731 Ooltewah-Ringgold Road, Ooltewah, TN 37363 (day program service facility); 
-10535 North Highway 58, Ooltewah, TN 37363; 
-10539 North Highway 58, Ooltewah, TN 37363; 
-11419 North Highway 58, Georgetown, TN 37336; 
-11421 North Highway 58, Georgetown, TN 37336; 
-7841 Sims Road, Harrison, TN 37341; 
-7845 Sims Road, Harrison, TN 37341; 
-9253 Snow Hill Road, Ooltewah, TN 37363; 
-9255 Snow Hill Road, Ooltewah, TN 37363; 
 
the New Hamilton County Facilities being financed will be constructed at the 

following locations (separate street addresses for such locations not being currently available) 
(both being residential treatment facilities): 

Hamilton County #1 

Approximately 1.5 acres, being located in the southwest quadrant of a parcel of land 
which is approximately 15.5 acres, the entire 15.5 acres currently having a street 
address of 7817 Gamble Road, Georgetown (Hamilton County), Tennessee 37336, 
being located on the northeast side of Gamble Road approximately 0.1 mile southeast 
of the intersection of Gamble Road and Tennessee Highway 58, and also being a 
portion of Parcel 061 045 in the records of the Hamilton County Tax Assessor; 

Hamilton County #2 

Approximately 1.5 acres, being located in the southeast quadrant of a parcel of land 
which is approximately 15.5 acres, the entire 15.5 acres currently having a street 
address of 7817 Gamble Road, Georgetown (Hamilton County), Tennessee 37336, 
being located on the northeast side of Gamble Road approximately 0.1 mile southeast 
of the intersection of Gamble Road and Tennessee Highway 58, and also being a 
portion of Parcel 061 045 in the records of the Hamilton County Tax Assessor; and 

All of the Hamilton County Facilities are or will be owned by WCO, are or will be 
leased to Open Arms Care Corporation, a Georgia nonprofit corporation, and are or will be 
managed by Integra Resources, LLC, a Tennessee limited liability company. 

This approval is solely for the purpose of complying with the provisions of the Act and 
Section 147(f) of the Code, and shall not result in or impose any pecuniary liability upon, or 
constitute a lien upon, the property, or a claim against, the State of Tennessee or any political 



 

 

subdivision thereof, including Hamilton County, Tennessee. 

All acts and doings of the officers and board members of the Board which are in 
conformity with the purposes of this Resolution are, in all respects, approved and confirmed. 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents or 
certificates necessary to evidence this Board’s approval for the issuance of the Bonds, the 
refinancing of the Existing Hamilton County Facilities and the financing of the New Hamilton 
County Facilities.  

All resolutions or parts thereof of the Board in conflict with the provisions herein 
contained are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded and repealed. 

This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  

 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 416-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN A CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT BETWEEN THE STATE OF TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 
HUMAN SERVICES AND THE HAMILTON COUNTY JUVENILE COURT TITLE 
 IV-D CHILD SUPPORT DIVISION. 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services established a Child Support 

Program to comply with requirements of the Title IV-D of the Social Security 
Act, as enacted by Congress in 1973; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said Department implements this program by entering into contracts with 

Juvenile Courts which have the jurisdiction/duty to hear these types of cases. 
 
WHEREAS, the Tennessee Department of Human Services has established an amount of 

liability to the State in an amount not to exceed $1,837,292.00 for the partial 
reimbursement of the County, for the period of July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2017. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the County Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into, and execute, the attached contract 
which establishes the amount of the State liability for this responsibility in an amount not to 
exceed $1,837,292.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

Click here to enter a date. 

  
Date 

 



No. 416-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF SAITECH, INC. FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT 
UNIT PRICING, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR 
TERM, BEGINNING APRIL 6, 2016 THROUGH APRIL 5, 2017, FOR LAPTOP COMPUTERS 
WITH DOCKING STATIONS AMOUNTING TO $999.58 EACH FOR THE SHERIFF’S 
DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract unit 

pricing, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for laptop 
computers with docking stations for the Sheriff’s Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Saitech, Inc. amounting to $999.58 each was considered to be the 

lowest and best bid; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Saitech, Inc. for one (1) year contract unit pricing, beginning April 6, 2016 through 
April 5, 2017, for laptop computers with docking stations amounting to $999.58 each for the Sheriff’s 
Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the 
County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 

































No. 416-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF ON DUTY DEPOT FOR ONE (1) YEAR 
CONTRACT UNIT PRICING, BEGINNING APRIL 6, 2016 THROUGH APRIL 5, 2017, 
FOR VEHICLE UPFITTING EQUIPMENT FOR THE SHERIFF’S VEHICLES AND TO 
AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract 

unit pricing for upfitting equipment for the Sheriff’s vehicles; and,  
   
WHEREAS, the bid from On Duty Depot was considered to be the lowest and best bid 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of On Duty Depot for one (1) year contract unit pricing, beginning April 6, 2016 
through April 5, 2017, for vehicle upfitting equipment for the Sheriff’s vehicles is hereby 
accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to 
sign any contacts necessary to implement this resolution.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 

























No. 416-13 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SUBMIT A 
GRANT APPLICATION TO DEVELOP A CONCEPTUAL MASTER PLAN 
FOR CHESTER FROST PARK TO THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT OF 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT 
TO EXCEED $40,000 WHICH INCLUDES A $20,000 COUNTY MATCH  
 

WHEREAS,  Chester Frost Park, home to the County Fair, is one of Hamilton County’s 
premier outdoor recreational venues attracting an estimated 180,000 local and 
non-local visitors a year; and, 

 
WHEREAS,   To identify opportunities to enhance the recreational and economic value of the 

park, County Parks and Recreation would like to undertake a planning process; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS,   The process would include Pinky’s Point, a 200 acre undeveloped section, and 

improvements to park features and amenities that could, in some cases, create 
new sources of revenue; and,  

 
WHEREAS,   The Tennessee Department of Economic and Community Development offers 

a Tourism Enhancement Grant that provides funds for planning; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County will apply for the grant in an amount not to exceed $40,000, 

which includes the required $20,000 County match; and,  
 
WHEREAS, If awarded, grant funds would be used to develop, with input from the public 

and key stakeholders,  a conceptual Master Plan for future improvements to 
Chester Frost Park; and, 
 

WHEREAS, This project will be accounted for through the Parks and Recreation operating 
funds; and 

 



 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 

The County Mayor is hereby authorized to submit a grant application to 
develop a conceptual Master Plan for Chester Frost Park to the Tennessee 
Department of Economic and Community Development in an amount not to 
exceed $40,000 which includes a $20,000 County match  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 416-14 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF JDH COMPANY, INC. FOR RE-ROOFING 
THE CHATTANOOGA/HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT AMOUNTING 
TO $191,625.00 AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for re-roofing the 

Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health Department building; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from JDH Company, Inc. amounting to $191,625.00 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of JDH Company, Inc. for re-roofing the Chattanooga/Hamilton County Health 
Department amounting to $191,625.00 is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best 
bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement 
this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 416-15 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC. FOR ONE 
(1) COPPER/FIBER CABLE TESTER AMOUNTING TO $22,508.95 FOR THE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) copper/fiber cable 

tester for the Telecommunications Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Graybar Electric Company, Inc. amounting to $22,508.95 was considered 

to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Graybar Electric Company, Inc. for one (1) copper/fiber cable tester for the 
Telecommunications Department amounting to $22,508.95 is hereby accepted, said bid being the 
lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 

























No. 416-16 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF EPB FIBER OPTICS FOR LOCAL 
TELEPHONE SERVICE TO HAMILTON COUNTY GOVERNMENT OFFICES AND 
SCHOOLS FOR A PERIOD OF THREE YEARS WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR 
TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERMS AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS 
RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were received in response to public advertisement for local telephone 

service including Centrex Lines (to be replaced), flat rate business lines and 
Central Office Trunks, for Hamilton County Government offices and schools; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), through the 

Telecommunications Act of 1996, established the Universal Service Fund 
(USF) to provide discounted telecommunications services to all schools; and, 

 
WHEREAS, local telephone service for the schools must be under contract in order to 

qualify for the FCC’s Education rate discount; and, 
 
WHEREAS, by entering into this agreement with EPB Fiber Optics certain Hamilton County 

schools may become eligible for discounted local telephone service; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the proposal from EPB Fiber Optics is considered to be the best proposal 

received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 



 

 

SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal of EPB Fiber Optics for local telephone service is hereby approved and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 











No. 416-17 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE SLOPE STABILIZATION REPAIRS OF HOTWATER 
ROAD BY GEOSTABILIZATION INTERNATIONAL ON THE STATE CONTRACT FOR SOIL 
NAILING FOR VARIOUS COUNTIES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, Hotwater Road in Hamilton County has exhibited an area which requires slope 

stabilization along the roadway to preserve the existing road platform.  The slope 
stabilization repairs require specialized geotechnical design and construction methods 
that can be provided by GeoStabilization International; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the price for the slope stabilization repairs from the State Contract is $296,593.00; and,  
 
WHEREAS, utilizing GeoStabilization International from the State Contract is the most feasible and 

economical means of providing the needed slope stabilization repairs; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available for this improvement in the requesting department’s 

operating budget. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the slope stabilization repairs in the amount of $296,593.00 by GeoStabilization International 
utilizing the State Contract is hereby approved, being the best and most economical source, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 















No. 416-18 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
April 6, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF DAVIES IMPERIAL COATINGS, INC., OZARK 
MATERIALS, LLC AND SHERWIN WILLIAMS COMPANY FOR ONE (1) YEAR CONTRACT 
PRICING, BEGINNING MAY 1, 2016, THROUGH APRIL 30, 2017, FOR WATERBORNE 
HIGHWAY TRAFFIC PAINT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS,  bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) year contract pricing 

for waterborne highway traffic paint for the Highway Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids of Davies Imperial Coatings, Inc., Ozark Materials, LLC, and Sherwin 

Williams Company were considered to be the lowest and best bids received; and, 
 
WHEREAS: there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bids of Davies Imperial Coatings, Inc., Ozark Materials, LLC and Sherwin Williams Company 
for one (1) year contract pricing, beginning May 1, 2016, through April 30, 2017, for waterborne 
highway traffic paint for the Highway Department are hereby accepted, said bids being the lowest and 
best bids received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

April 6, 2016 

  
Date 

 






















	4-6-16 Public Agenda
	416-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - March 9, 2016 _2200_03-09-16 Recessed
	416-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - March 9, 2016 _2201_03-09-16 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	416-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - March 16, 2016 _2202_03-16-16 Regular
	416-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report - February 2016_2190_Trustee Montly Report - Feb 2016
	416-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - February 2016_2191_Trustee Excess Fee Report - Feb 2016
	416-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report - January 2016_2192_January 2016 Monthly
	416-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - January 2016_2193_January 2016 Excess Fee
	416-_S_Report_North West Utility District Board of Commissioners Appointment of Hugh Coulter_2204_North West Utility District Board of Commissioners Appointment Hugh Coulter
	416-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_2205_04-06-16
	416-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_2205_04-06-16A
	416-2_R_Appointment(s)_Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board_2181_Employee Appeals Board-John Shackleford CERP
	416-2_S_Appointment(s)_Hamilton County Employee Appeals Board_2181_John Shackleford's Resume
	416-3_R_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Dr Blaise W Baxter to the ChattanoogaHamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees_2208_Baxter Resolution
	416-3_S_Appointment(s)_Appointment of Dr Blaise W Baxter to the ChattanoogaHamilton County Hospital Authority Board of Trustees_2208_Dr. Baxter
	416-4_R_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Chattanoogas Kids on the Block Inc_2184_Comm Bankston KidsontheBlock
	416-4_S_Commissioner Bankston_Appropriation for Chattanoogas Kids on the Block Inc_2184_1510_001
	416-5_R_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for A Night to Remember Inc_2186_Comm Beck Night to Remember2
	416-5_S_Commissioner Beck_Appropriation for A Night to Remember Inc_2186_1513_001
	416-6_R_Commissioner Fields_Appropriation for Town of Red Bank_2185_Comm Fields Red Bank
	416-7_R_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Kappa Foundation of Chattanooga_2183_Comm Mackey Kappa
	416-7_S_Commissioner Mackey_Appropriation for Kappa Foundation of Chattanooga_2183_1502_001
	416-8_R_Sheriff Hammond_Firing Range Modifications_2199_Firing Range Res
	416-8_S_Sheriff Hammond_Firing Range Modifications_2199_Firing Range Interlocal Agreement - 09 09 15
	416-9_R_Rheubin Taylor_Issuance of revenue bonds for the benefit of WCO Inc a Tennessee nonprofit corporation_2212_WCO Bond Issuance
	416-10_R_Sam Mairs_Juvenile Court Child Support Grant_2206_CHILD SUPPORT AMENDMENT VI RESOLUTION APRIL 2016
	416-11_R_Sheriff Hammond_Laptops with Docking Stations_2188_RES. LAPTOPS WITH DOCKING STATIONS
	416-11_S_Sheriff Hammond_Laptops with Docking Stations_2188_Laptops with Docking Stations
	416-12_R_Sheriff Hammond_Vehicle Upfitting Equipment_2198_RES. VEHICLE UPFITTING EQUIPMENT CONTRACT
	416-12_S_Sheriff Hammond_Vehicle Upfitting Equipment_2198_Upfitting Equipment Contract
	416-13_R_Dan Saieed_Request to apply for a grant to fund a conceptual Master Plan for Chester Frost Park_2203_Chester Frost Master Plan resolution to apply
	416-14_R_Becky Barnes_Reroofing the Hamilton County Health Department_2207_RES.RE-ROOF HEALTH DEPARTMENT BUILDING
	416-14_S_Becky Barnes_Reroofing the Hamilton County Health Department_2207_RE-ROOFING HEALTH DEPT.
	416-15_R_Albert Kiser_Copper Fiber Cable Tester_2189_RES. COPPER FIBER CABLE TESTER
	416-15_S_Albert Kiser_Copper Fiber Cable Tester_2189_Copper Fiber Cable Tester
	416-16_R_Albert Kiser_Local Telephone Service_2209_416-16_R_Albert Kiser_Local Telephone Service_2209_RES. LOCAL TELEPHONE SERVICE
	416-16_S_Albert Kiser_Local Telephone Service_2209_Local Telephone Service
	416-17_R_Todd Leamon_Slope Stabilization for Hotwater Road_2182_cerp hotwater road resolution
	416-17_S_Todd Leamon_Slope Stabilization for Hotwater Road_2182_Hotwater Road attachment
	416-18_R_Todd Leamon_Waterborne Highway Traffic Paint_2211_RES. TRAFFIC PAINT
	416-18_S_Todd Leamon_Waterborne Highway Traffic Paint_2211_TRAFFIC PAINT

